
Otsego County Planning Commission 
Approved Minutes for June 15, 2020 

 

Page | 1  

Call to Order:  6:00pm by Chairperson Hartmann 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Chairperson Hartmann welcomed the public attending remotely and explained they would be 

given an opportunity to speak during the public hearing and requested they give their name 

before speaking. 
 

Roll Call: 

Present:  Mr. Hartmann, Mrs. Jarecki, Mr. Maxwell, Mr. Brown, Mr. Marlette, Mr. Scott, Mr. 

Caverson, Mr. Bauman, Ms. Corfis 

Absent:  Mr. Borton, Mr. Hilgendorf  

Staff Present:  Mr. Churches, Ms. Boyak-Wohlfeil 

Others Present:  Scott Bell, Lapham Associates, Deshano representative, Chuck Edwards, 

Health Department of Northwest Michigan, ***Ken Mertz, Michaywe’ Owners Association 

Director, Mary Woodhouse, Michaywe’ Owners Association arrived later in the meeting 

Public Present Remotely:  Twenty (20) residents remoted into the meeting. 
 

Approval of minutes from:   March 16, 2020 

Chairperson Hartmann requested discussion on the minutes. 

Motion made by Mr. Brown to approve minutes as presented; Seconded by Mr. Bauman. 

Motion approved unanimously. 
 

Consent Agenda:  None 
 

Other:  None 
 

Public participation for items not on the agenda:  None 
 

Public Hearing:   

1. PZ20-001 Michaywe Owners Association, owners represented by Scott Bell, Lapham Associates’ 

representing DeShano Development Corporation, is requesting a site plan update to the 

Michaywe Planned Unit Development (PUD) changing the following properties from Single 

Family Residential, Commercial and Open Area Use to Multi Family Residential Use for the 

construction of a senior housing complex. 

Parcel identification number: 091-340-001-336-00 through 091-340-001-343-00,  

090-002-100-005-07 (part of) 

     Opal Lake Rd 

Gaylord, MI  49735 

Legal Description: 
LOTS 1336 – 1343 MICHAYWE NO. 6 SEC 2 T29N R3W  

 ***AND***  

A PARCEL COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 2; THENCE S89°22'00"E, 2806.15 FEET, 

ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 2; THENCE S02°38'07"E, 82.81 FEET TO THE POINT ON THE SOUTHERLY 

RIGHT-OF-WAY OF OPAL LAKE ROAD AS SHOWN ON THE PLAT OF MICHAYWE # 1, RECORDED IN LIBER 3 ON PAGE 

102 OF THE OTSEGO COUNTY PUBLIC RECORDS; THENCE S01°27'10"E, 169.05 FEET ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID 

LOT 1043 TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE S13°08'19"W, 116.85 FEET; THENCE S43°27'31"E, 363.06 FEET; THENCE 

N86°39'34"E, 350.18 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF LOT 1336 OF SAID MICHAYWE #6 BEING N35°22'30"E, 37.98 

FEET FROM THE CORNER COMMON TO LOTS 1335 AND 1336; THENCE ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID PLAT OF 

MICHAYWE # 6 ON THE FOLLOWING FOUR COURSES, N35°22'30"W, 140.72 FEET TO THE CORNER COMMON TO LOTS 

1337 AND 1338; THENCE N51°30'00"W, 200.00FEET TO THE CORNER COMMON TO LOTS 1339 AND 1340; THENCE 

N62°02'46"W, 272.00 FEET TO THE CORNER COMMON TO LOTS 1342 AND 1343; THENCE S84°04'00"W, 95.00 FEET BACK 

TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

 



Otsego County Planning Commission 
Approved Minutes for June 15, 2020 

 

Page | 2  

a. Open Public Hearing 

b. Applicant Summary 

c. Public Comment (3minute limit) 

d. Close Public Hearing 

e. Planning Commission Discussion  

f. Motion 

Chairperson Hartmann stated the case before the Commission, opened the public hearing and 

requested comment from the applicant. 

Public hearing opened:  6:02pm 

Scott Bell, Lapham Associates, representative for Deshano Development Corporation, stated 

they were proposing to build a thirty-two (32) unit senior housing complex; the project would 

house seniors, it would not be an assisted living facility.  A possible Phase II could be in the 

future if need be.  The proposed property consisted of lots along Opal Lake Dr and part of the 

common area in front of the clubhouse; the properties were approximately three (3) acres and 

would be combined for the project.  They were proposing a change of use to the property to 

multi-family residential and subsequently an update to the Michaywe’ Planned Unit 

Development (PDU) site plan map. 

Chairperson Hartmann questioned if the units would be rented and the age requirements. 

Mr. Bell stated they would be rented and would be geared toward people fifty-five (55) years of 

age and older.  The intent was to allow people to stay in Michaywe’ and enjoy the amenities 

without having the maintenance and upkeep of owning a home.  They would be in close 

proximity to dining, swimming and golf.  It was a middle ground between owning their own 

home and going to an assisted living facility.  

Chairperson Hartmann questioned the water and sewage situation. 

Mr. Bell stated a public well would be onsite along with a sewage/waste water/drain-field 

system.  They were working through the process with the Health Department and State.  

Everything would be encompassed on the proposed property.   

Mr. Brown questioned the Health Department’s comments on the well and septic presented in 

the packet. 

Chuck Edwards, Health Department of Northwest Michigan Director, stated he had performed 

the review and since then had been provided updated information concerning the flow and size 

of the septic system for Phase I; it was found to be in order so far with conditions.  Phase II was 

questionable and contingent on Phase I; a second well would be required but there was not 

enough room on the site for another septic so the system would need to be reviewed to 

determine its validity before moving forward with a second phase.   

Mr. Caverson stated he thought the case was just a property change of use, not a site plan 

review. 

Chairperson Hartmann stated the case was just for Michaywe’s use change and update to the 

PUD’s site plan. 

Mrs. Jarecki questioned the response from the fire department. 

Mr. Churches stated it had been approved. 

Chairperson Hartmann stated the case had been sent to both Bagley Township and Otsego Lake 

Township. 

 



Otsego County Planning Commission 
Approved Minutes for June 15, 2020 

 

Page | 3  

Ms. Corfis stated Otsego Lake Township had reviewed the case and according to Michaywe’s 

governing documents, it was determined the MOA needed a two-thirds (2/3) approval vote to 

change the property use and update the site plan.  Michaywe’ was holding another vote 

scheduled for July 18th.  The Township was recommending the County Planning Commission 

postpone their decision until after the result of Michaywe’s vote.   This would be procedurally 

correct. 

Mr. Maxwell stated Bagley Township Planning Commission had approved the site plan change 

but it had not been approved by the Township Board yet.  They were planning a special 

meeting if need be to make their recommendation. 

Mr. Churches stated because there was some question as to whether the MOA had originally 

met the required two-thirds (2/3) approval, Michaywe’ would hold another vote.  The County’s 

attorney was contacted concerning Michaywe’s by-laws and deed restrictions and his response 

basically stated the MOA and its residents were responsible for ensuring compliance with those 

by-laws and deed restrictions.  The County’s approval should be based on the Ordinance and 

not the by-laws. 

Chairperson Hartmann questioned the paperwork distributed to the members that evening. 

Mr. Churches stated the paperwork was a revised exhibit list showing the date of Otsego Lake 

Township’s response and two (2) emails received from property owners.  He read the emails 

aloud. SEE ATTACHMENT #1 

Mr. Caverson questioned the original approval of the PUD and if it was necessary for its base 

of operations to state a vote is required. 

Mr. Churches stated Michaywe’s situation was unique because the PUD was adopted prior to 

there being a PUD ordinance.  Land Use had all the documents from the 1970’s when the PUD 

was originally adopted but it did not include all the materials that would be required now for a 

new PUD.  In the PUD ordinance itself, it does not specify what governing documents are 

required just that governing documents are required. 

Mr. Caverson stated the governing documents would then be included with an improved PUD. 

Mr. Churches stated that was correct.   

Ms. Corfis questioned if the County should be responsible to protect the Michaywe’ residents if 

the MOA did not obey those governing documents. 

Mr. Churches stated the attorney advised otherwise unless there was an overlap between the 

deed restrictions and the ordinance, then the County could enforce them under the ordinance. 

Ms. Corfis stated Michaywe’ should obey its governing documents and they were not in 

compliance at the time of application; Michaywe’ did agree with Otsego Lake Township and 

that was why a new vote was being held. 

Mr. Scott questioned if the decision could be contingent on Michaywe’s vote. 

Chairperson Hartmann stated a condition could be placed on the approval of the use change. 

Ms. Corfis stated Otsego Lake Township thought the County should wait for the vote before 

deciding to ensure there were not any changes. 

Chairperson Hartmann requested comment from the public. 

Mr. Churches stated he would unmute each person one by one for comment.  

Danielle Barkman had no comment. 



Otsego County Planning Commission 
Approved Minutes for June 15, 2020 

 

Page | 4  

Eric stated he agreed they should wait for the vote before approval. 

Franny Miller had no comment. 

Margaret had no comment. 

Rahit Jahn stated his comments were more for the MOA and questioned the implications to 

property values and association charges.  He also thought they should wait for the vote before 

deciding and thought the MOA should have been represented.  

Mr. Bell stated he was not familiar with what the MOA had presented when the original vote 

took place; those items would need to be discussed with them. 

Sue and Steve Geopp agreed with waiting for the vote before deciding. 

Ryan agreed they should wait until after MOA’s vote. 

Sunflower questioned the definition of multi-use and if the housing was just for seniors or if 

children would be included; she questioned if there would be Section 8 housing.  She also 

thought the MOA should have been present to answer questions. 

Mr. Bell stated the complex was proposed for seniors and was not proposed for development as 

subsidized housing. 

Mr. Churches read aloud the following definition for a multi-family dwelling per the Otsego 

County Zoning Ordinance: 

DWELLING, MULTIPLE-FAMILY:  A building containing three (3) or more 

dwelling units designed for residential use and including a rooming house, bed and 

breakfast, tourist home, apartment house, group quarters, or extended care facility for 

seven (7) or more persons, such as adult foster care or alternative institutional setting 

home.  State-licensed residential facilities shall be considered as single-family 

dwellings when questions of overcrowding and safety are addressed by the state 

agency issuing the license. 

He also stated two (2) representatives from the MOA were supposed to be in attendance but 

was not aware why they were not. 

Sunflower questioned if this meeting was for feedback only or if a decision would be made 

tonight.  She thought another meeting should be held so their questions could be answered by 

the MOA. 

734.467.3502 had no comment. 

Michelle Noirot, Bagley Township Supervisor, stated she did not currently have questions but 

was surprised there wasn’t any MOA representation. 

989.370.9466 had no comment. 

Sandra and Roger Thompson stated this project was for senior housing for seniors fifty-five 

(55) and older and had been presented last year for a vote to Michaywe’ owners.  Sandra stated 

there was a MOA Board meeting scheduled for Saturday, June 20th at 10am in the clubhouse if 

anyone needed questions answered.  They could also contact Mary Woodhouse to be placed on 

a mailing list for weekly updates of what’s happening in Michaywe’. 

Gary Fults stated he was against approval and felt there were a multitude of places better than 

Michaywe’ for senior housing.  He felt it would be a mistake and adversely affect the 

aesthetics.  

989.939.7439 had no comment. 

989.939.8294 had no comment. 



Otsego County Planning Commission 
Approved Minutes for June 15, 2020 

 

Page | 5  

989.939.8545 had no comment. 

Gino Rea had no comment 

Study had no comment. 

Echo commented on concerns with the curvy road. 

Guest commented there were many walkers on the road and with no sidewalks, sixty-four units 

would more than double the number of houses on that road and would increase the number of 

people on the road. 

Chairperson Hartmann questioned if there was any reason why they shouldn’t table a decision 

until after the Michaywe’ vote. 

Mr. Bell stated they could not move forward with anything until this was ironed out; they could 

not move dirt, they could not get permits; even the purchase agreement was contingent on the 

approval.  He would ask the Commission to make a decision conditioned on the result of the 

Michaywe’ vote.  Providing the two-thirds (2/3) vote passes, they could move forward with a 

site plan review instead of waiting for another hearing to be scheduled for a final decision. 

Mr. Churches stated another hearing would not have to be held; the case would just be placed 

on the agenda for a decision. 

Ms. Corfis stated they wouldn’t be able to move forward with the project until they came 

before the township again for a recommendation of approval. 

Mr. Maxwell stated if the vote was July 18th, it could be placed on the July 20th agenda. 

Mr. Churches stated the result of the vote would be needed and the information would not be 

included in the meeting packet. 

Chairperson Hartmann stated if they could be assured of the results of the July 18th MOA vote, 

he thought adding it to the July agenda would still work.  He stated there wasn’t anyone 

attending remotely who was for the project. 

Mr. Churches stated numerous calls were received prior to the meeting and typically if people 

are for a project, they don’t attend a meeting. 

Mr. Bauman questioned if the ballot was sent out, did it need to be received by July 18th. 

Ms. Corfis stated she was not a Michaywe’ resident, the Michaywe’ letter stated the vote was 

July 18th; the MOA would have to clarify further. 

Chairperson Hartmann requested further input, hearing none, closed the public hearing. 

Public hearing closed:  6:46pm 

Advertised Case:  

2. PZ20-001 Michaywe Owners Association, owners represented by Scott Bell, Lapham Associates’ 

representing DeShano Development Corporation, is requesting a site plan update to the 

Michaywe Planned Unit Development (PUD) changing the following properties from Single 

Family Residential, Commercial and Open Area Use to Multi Family Residential Use for the 

construction of a senior housing complex. 

Parcel identification number: 091-340-001-336-00 through 091-340-001-343-00,  

090-002-100-005-07 (part of) 

     Opal Lake Rd 

Gaylord, MI  49735 

 



Otsego County Planning Commission 
Approved Minutes for June 15, 2020 

 

Page | 6  

Chairperson Hartmann made a motion to postpone a decision on the use change to Michaywe’s 

PUD site plan until the new MOA vote of July 18th was tallied; Seconded by Ms. Corfis.  

Roll Call: 

Yes:  9 

No:  0 

Absent:  2  

Motion approved unanimously. 

Case PZSU20-001 will be on the August agenda following the vote result. 

 

Unfinished Commission Business:  None 

 

New Business:  None  

 

Reports and Commission Member’s Comments: 

1. Otsego County Parks & Recreation report/Judy Jarecki 

Mrs. Jarecki stated Tom Pratt had been hired as the new Parks & Rec Director, he previously 

worked at Patriot Place; the campground at the County Park was open, the boat ramp had been 

redone due to ice damage and the dock installed, and the fireworks were still scheduled for July 

3rd; the gym floor at the Community Center had been removed – memorial pieces could be 

obtained onsite; trees had been planted at the Groen and the Charleston Charlton Township 

Fire Department agreed to water the trees three (3) times per week for $1,000 as opposed to the 

$3,000 bid received for the project, the opening ceremony for the Groen’s new gate off 

Heatherton Rd was postponed due to mechanical issues – it has not been rescheduled, and 

another employee is being sought for the Groen season; the next Park’s meeting will be July 

13th at the Otsego Lake County Park. 

Ken Mertz, MOA director arrived 6:50pm. 

Chairperson Hartmann stated they had just closed the public hearing and had twenty (20) 

people remote in, many with questions for the MOA. 

Mr. Mertz stated they thought the meeting started at 7:00pm and apologized for the error. 

Chairperson Hartmann stated the Commission had postponed their decision until the result of 

the July 18th vote was in.  The case would be placed on the Commission’s July 20th agenda. 

Mr. Mertz stated the vote was mail in and due by July 25th. 

Chairperson Hartmann stated the case would have to be moved to the August 17th agenda 

instead and the motion changed to reflect that. 

Mr. Marlette questioned the current use of the community property.  

Mr. Mertz stated it was just woods; the parcel was approximately three (3) acres. 

Chairperson Hartmann stated there were questions concerning property values and increased 

dues. 

Mr. Mertz stated this use change would keep association dues from escalating rapidly because 

Michaywe’ was gaining a good sum of money from the sale of the property and also the 

development would be paying Michaywe’ approximately $9,000 a year. 

Mr. Churches stated the general consensus of the people attending was to wait until the result of 

the Michaywe’ vote before the Commission made a decision.   



Otsego County Planning Commission 
Approved Minutes for June 15, 2020 

 

Page | 7  

Mr. Mertz stated that was the opinion of Otsego Lake Township as well.  They decided to 

provide approval for the change of use with the passing of the vote. 

Ms. Corfis stated approval would not be given until the result of the vote was determined to be 

sure there were no changes, additions or modifications. 

Mr. Mertz questioned having to attend another meeting at the township for approval. 

Ms. Corfis stated if Michaywe’ wanted their recommendation, they would give their approval 

upon an affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) members.  Their meeting would be only a few days 

following the Michaywe’ deadline so they would not be holding them up. 

Mary Woodhouse, MOA representative arrived 6:57pm.  She apologized for the mistake. 

Mr. Mertz explained to her the Commission had postponed their decision until August after the 

result of the vote. 

Chairperson Hartmann also shared that the Health Department had approved the 32-unit 

project. 

Mr. Edwards clarified there were some revisions to the waste water size still needing to be 

reviewed and a condition for approval was a water supply approval through EGLE; the review 

was not finalized yet. 

Mr. Bell stated that approval required test wells be drilled to determine the capacity of the 

aquafer but it was rather expensive so they were waiting for Planning Commission approval 

before moving forward. 

Mr. Churches stated there was a rumor going around that if this apartment complex was 

established it would require Michaywe’ to obtain city sewer and water; he asked Mr. Edwards 

to address these concerns. 

Mr. Edwards stated Michaywe’s Master Deed contained some provisions agreed to by the 

developers that when Michaywe’ reached a certain capacity of development, city sewer and 

water would be added; back in the 1990’s this was reviewed by the State and was determined it 

was not enforceable by the Health Department. 

Chairperson questioned how many homes were in Michaywe’. 

Mrs. Woodhouse stated there were about 950. 

Mr. Mertz stated many of those were seasonal so were not occupied year-round. 

Mrs. Woodhouse stated they still did annual water quality testing randomly testing the homes in 

Michaywe’. 

Mr. Scott questioned the potential of negatively impacting the surrounding wells in the area. 

Mr. Edwards stated the design of the system was meant to prevent that from happening; that 

was one of the criteria looked at during review. 

Mr. Bell stated the purpose of drilling the test wells was to determine the capacity of the 

aquafer so that it did not adversely affect the aquafer or the surrounding wells.   

2. Land Use Services report   

With nothing further, Chairperson Hartmann adjourned the meeting. 

  

Adjournment:  7:05pm by Chairperson Hartmann 

Pete Maxwell; Secretary 

Christine Boyak-Wohlfeil; Recording Secretary 



Otsego County Planning Commission 
Approved Minutes for June 15, 2020 

 

Page | 8  

ATTACHMENT #1: 

 

  



Otsego County Planning Commission 
Approved Minutes for June 15, 2020 

 

Page | 9  

 

 

 

 

 


